
Madison Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes 

 09/03/2025  
Page 1 of 7 

 
 

                            TOWN OF MADISON 
                              PLANNING BOARD 
                                      PO BOX 248 
                 MADISON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03849 
                          planning@madison-nh.org 
             Phone: 603-367-4332  x303     Fax: 603-367-4547 

 
             PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 

       September 3, 2025 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Marc Ohlson, Chairman, Paul Marks, Vice Chair, Donna Hempel, Adam Price, Tia 
Gagnon - Alternate; Joe Viana- Alternate. 

MEMBERS EXCUSED:  Karl Nordlund and Paul Littlefield 

OTHERS PRESENT: Kasia Scontsas, MadTV, Katharine Young, Land Use Boards Administrator, Christopher 
T. Meier, Attorney, Cooper Cargill Chant, PA, & Pomeroy et al and Susan Vatnick 

POSTING DATES & LOCATIONS: Notice was posted on August 27, 2025 at the Madison and Silver Lake 
Post Offices, in the Madison Town Hall - upper and lower levels. 

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Ohlson called the regular meeting of the Madison Planning Board to order 
on September 3, 2025 at 7:10 PM. 

ELEVATION OF ALTERNATES:  Chairman Ohlson stated since there was a full board present, no 
alternates would be elevated. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Marks, seconded by Viana, to approve the agenda as presented. The 
motion was voted on and passed 4-0. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: August 6, 2025 minutes and August 6, 2025 Non-Public Minutes (made 
public): 

Motion by Price, seconded by Marks to approve the August 6, 2025 regular meeting minutes as written. 
The motion was voted on and passed 4-0. 

Motion by Price, seconded by Marks to approve the August 6, 2025 Non-Public Minutes as written. The 
motion was voted on and passed 4-0. 

PUBLIC COMMENT/NEW BUSINESS: Chairman Ohlson asked if there was any public comment.  Susan 
Vatnick was on the agenda and asked to speak to the board. 

Vatnick appeared before the board with questions regarding a right of way on a private access road. She 
explained that her questions pertained to Lot 21 (her property) which is on East Madison Road; the 
abutting lot behind her (Lot 19, recently purchased by Richard Bennett) and a private road that runs 
from East Madison Road between her property and her neighbor's property. 

Vatnick noted that Lot 19 has a right of way on the private road but also has 750 feet of road frontage 
on East Madison Road. She asked whether the property owner with a right of way over a private road is 
permitted to build a driveway off the private road.  She also asked if they are allowed to build a domicile 

mailto:planning@madison-nh.org


Madison Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes 

 09/03/2025  
Page 2 of 7 

 
 

when the property has road frontage on a Class V road from which access could be built.  She 
referenced RSA 674:3 regarding erection of buildings on streets. 

Chairman Ohlson explained that these were not planning board questions, but rather legal questions 
about the status of the right of way. Board members indicated that if the property owner has access to 
the right of way, they could likely build a driveway and domicile, but the specific permissions would 
depend on the language in the deed. 

Vatnick asked if the property were to be subdivided, would the right of way pass to the new lots? Board 
members noted that this would also depend on deed language and whether sufficient frontage on East 
Madison Road was maintained for any subdivision. 

Vatnick's final question concerned an existing storage shed on Lot 19 and whether that site could be 
used to build a primary residence, which would constitute a change of use. The board reiterated that 
this would depend on the right of way specifications and setback requirements. 

Price explained that Vatnick should seek a legal opinion on the right of way, as her questions were 
primarily legal matters rather than planning board issues. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

•    VOLUNTARY MERGER REHEARING (Per Hillsborough Superior Court Northern District’s Order dated 
March 26, 2025 Re:  Pomeroy Trails End Trust (continued to August 6, 2025):  

Attorney Chris Meier from Cooper Cargill Chant, PA, introduced himself as representing the Pomeroy’s 
and noting that some members of the trust were present at the meeting tonight. He referred to a 
memorandum he had submitted to the board and confirmed that they had received it and conferred 
with their legal counsel.  Attorney Meier explained that he was new to this matter, as the Pomeroy’s had 
a previous attorney who original submitted the application and that he came on board after the case 
was remanded back to the Planning Board from the court.  Attorney Meier stated that he had added 
some information to the memorandum that the prior attorney had not looked at and he asked that the 
board consider those arguments and he believes they are dispositive on whether the application should 
be granted. 

Attorney Meier explained that the property in question is located on Winter Road, it is on the lake and is 
comprising a 7.4-acre property that was previously subdivided and condominiumized, though the 
condominium declaration was never recorded but this is how it sits as a unit subdivision condominium.  
He further explained that the Pomeroy’s are looking to voluntarily merge all the lots back into a single 
lot that has the same structures and there are no physical changes to the lot and this is key, with respect 
to their first argument and he presented his two arguments as follows: 

1. The condominium statute prohibits planning boards from treating condominiums differently 
than other types of ownership when there's no physical difference. Attorney Meier argued this 
statute mandates that the Voluntary Merger be allowed. 

2. Attorney Meier believes that based on the town’s Zoning Ordinance back when the town 
decided the first time, the opinion was that the Zoning Ordinance does not permit three 
dwelling units on a single lot.  Attorney Meier referred the board to Section 4.2 of the Zoning 
Ordinance and it specifically talks about cluster development and the town’s ordinance does not 
define cluster development or cluster housing.  He explained that Section 4.2 (A) explains what 
is allowed on a lot which is “single family houses, multiple housing, (cluster housing etc.) and the 



Madison Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes 

 09/03/2025  
Page 3 of 7 

 
 

town’s Zoning Ordinance does not define it but the closest he could find, was The New 
Hampshire Housing Toolbox. He further explained that this is a group of the New Hampshire 
Housing Finance Authority and the New Hampshire Municipal Association that gets together and 
talks about housing and they define cluster housing as “a style of the development in which 
homes are grouped together or clustered on a site and given large shared open spaces rather 
than the style of conventional development with homes evenly distributed with smaller private 
open spaces.”  He explained that this is a lot wherein you have clusters of multiple units and 
then off the lake, there is much more open space that was shared under the condominium and 
would be shared now. He further explained that even if the statute does not apply to allow this, 
their position is that the Zoning Ordinance allows it, specifically by referring to cluster housing in 
a residential zone. 

Chairman Ohlson explained to the board, the prior history of this property and that it was a 
condominium development and the Pomeroy’s had a summer place on the lake that has three buildings 
and the board, at that time, struggled with making this property a condominium due to road access, 
etc., and the board finally succumbed to that.  He explained that now the board is struggling to 
uncondominiumize it.  He further explained that the board’s decision was voted no to the Voluntary 
Merger and the Pomeroy’s appealed that decision and went to the Land Use Court and the Land Use 
Court remanded it back to the Planning Board to clarify.  In the meantime, Attorney Meier brings forth 
other arguments and the board had their attorney give her opinion of where the board stands.  Marks 
stated his understanding is that the board is here to look at this based on the court remanding it back to 
us to look at our decision only and not to hear new information.  Chairman Ohlson agreed.  Marks stated 
that this is what the board should be doing and anything else beyond that, we would need to talk with 
our attorney as he is not comfortable with doing that.  Attorney Meier stated they could certainly come 
back to the board if the board chooses to talk with their attorney.  Attorney Meier did agree that the 
statutory argument is outside the purview of what comes back from a factual finding and so, if you 
cannot do it by statute, then you cannot do it at all. 

Chairman Ohlson instructed the board to again, read their attorney’s conclusion. 

Price stated it is his understanding that there is nothing new here and that Attorney Meier is looking for 
a new hearing and that there are two sets of new plans submitted and old plans submitted.  He further 
explained that everything is the same and we are talking about a Voluntary Merger of the same lot and 
that the board is looking at their decision from last time and the court remanded it back here and there 
is nothing new.  Attorney Meier added that there is no physical change to the property.  Price stated he 
would make a motion and indicated that the board has no choice but to allow the Voluntary Merger 
based on legal considerations, though he expressed that it was against his personal judgment and 
opinion. He suggested the board should review the Zoning Ordinance, discuss it with their attorney and 
correct this issue to prevent similar situations in the future. 

Motion by Price, seconded by Gagon to allow the Voluntary Merger as presented.  The motion was 
voted on and passed with a vote of 3-0-1 with Marks abstaining as he expressed reservations, stating he 
did not have enough information. 

Price asked Chairman Ohlson if Young, Land Use Boards Administrator could have the Planning Board’s 
attorney review the Zoning Ordinance regarding multiple dwelling units on one lot, noting the potential 
contradiction with the two-acre minimum lot requirement.  Price stated that he does not want to see 
two-acre lots with four homes on it.  Gagnon asked, wasn’t cluster development created to help with 
housing and keep them more rural and open space?  Chairman Ohlson stated the Pomeroy case was a 
unique case because of where it is.  Price further stated that if we are going to have a two-acre 



Madison Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes 

 09/03/2025  
Page 4 of 7 

 
 

minimum allowing three dwelling units on one lot, then it is completely contradictory to what we are 
trying to accomplish and he does understand that every case is different but he does not want to get 
caught up in this situation again. 

MASTER PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE:  Gagnon explained the committee went over the proposal from 
North Country Council (NCC) and she explained the committee is not ready to bring anything to the 
Planning Board and that the committee is trying to stay within the allotted budget for this year for the 
entire proposal.  She further explained that (NCC) had broken their proposal down into two stages with 
the first stage costing approximately $25,000.00 and the second stage costing approximately $30,000.00 
- $33,000.00.  She further explained this was member and non-member pricing.  She also explained that 
NCC’s offerings were ala carte and the committee is hopeful to have another meeting in a few weeks 
that will be posted, so the committee can narrow down what they already have.  Young, Land Use 
Boards Administrator confirmed with Gagnon that a meeting date had not been set. 

Gagnon explained the committee is basically through the first phase of the planning and preparation of 
the Master Plan and cannot take off a line item at this point, or a full phase of the proposal. She further 
explained that the committee is half way through the engagement phase but have not produced 
anything in completion and that they are going to see what they can do on their own and see where 
they may need NCC’s assistance.   

Gagnon explained that she had sent out the visioning prompts for our town leaders at the last meeting 
and was not sure if everyone was ready to go over it or have had time to fill it out.  She stated if it has 
been filled out, then we can workshop it tonight or do that later.  Price stated he has not had an 
opportunity to fill it out.  Ohlson stated he completed the survey questionnaire and Viana stated he did 
as well.  

Gagnon explained she is still waiting on visioning prompts to come back from all board members so they 
can workshop it either at the Planning Board meeting or a separate meeting.  Chairman Ohlson stated 
he would be out of town but that she could pick a date that is good for Marks and herself. The time was 
decided for 5:30 pm but no final date was set.  Chairman Ohlson stated this was the Master Plan 
Subcommittee’s meeting.  Gagnon stated no, it is not the subcommittee and that she needs the 
Planning Board to fill out the visioning prompt so that the Planning Board is involved and this is the 
outreach that everybody is doing with their boards.  Price stated we should do this at the Planning 
Board’s October 1, 2025 meeting.  Gagnon stated that all Planning Board members need to have the 
forms completed for the October 1, 2025 meeting. 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT – Marc Ohlson:  Chairman Ohlson had nothing to report. 

SELECTMAN’S REPORT – Adam Price:  Price stated that the Selectboard appointed Nicole Nordlund to 
fill Rick Judkins seat.  Gagnon questioned if Nordlund will take over Judkins duties?  Price believed 
Judkins did not have any.  Gagnon stated he had one and Young corrected her and stated he was also 
the representative for the Madison Conservation Commission.  Gagnon stated he was also on the Rec. 
Path Committee with her with the DNCR.  Young, Land Use Boards Administrator stated she would ask 
the Town Administrator, Linda Shackford to add to the Selectmens Agenda, the possibility of Nordlund 
filling the duties for the Rec. Path Committee and the Madison Conservation Commission.  

Gagnon asked if there were any outside volunteers for the CIP Committee? Price stated he did not 
believe so but there is a running committee because there is a quorum based on reps from this board, 
the Board of Selectmen and the Budget Committee. 



Madison Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes 

 09/03/2025  
Page 5 of 7 

 
 

PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC. – There was discussion about the Planning Board doing a site visit at Pike 
Industries on Rt. 113.  The Planning Board decided on October 9, 2025 at 4:00 pm.  It was further 
decided that members will park at the second driveway area heading south towards Community Market.  
Young, Land Use Boards Administrator stated she would email Larry Major at Pike to confirm the date 
and time and then she would follow up and email all members. 

CORRESPONDENCE/ADMINISTRATION:   
COLEMAN’S PIT:  Chairman Ohlson recused himself from the table and sat in the audience and Marks, 
Acting Chairman stated he wanted to ask Ohlson some questions pertaining to the Coleman Pit. 

Marks, Acting Chairman stated that last month, Ron Briggs, from Briggs Land Surveying came to a 
meeting and showed the board some drawings of the area in question.  Also, Briggs provided the cost 
for him to complete a survey and that cost was approximately $4,800.00.  Marks, Acting Chairman 
shared the maps/drawings that Briggs had provided the board and the portions highlighted in 
yellow/green were questions that Marks Acting Chairman wanted to ask Ohlson.   

Marks, Acting Chairman stated that Ohlson had presented some pictures at a previous meeting and he 
asked Ohlson where the pictures were taken from?  Ohlson stated that they were mostly taken from the 
Bypass Corridor and Ohlson confirmed on the maps/drawings from Briggs, where Coleman is excavating 
which is the lot outlined in yellow/green.  Marks, Acting Chairman asked Ohlson where his lot is and he 
stated his is the lot outlined in blue.  Marks, Acting Chairman asked Ohlson if Coleman is within 20 feet 
of Ohlson’s property line.  Ohlson stated that Coleman has trees over the line and Coleman is within less 
than 20 feet where he is supposed to be 50 feet. Ohlson also pointed out on the maps/drawings where 
Coleman is over his line.  Ohlson stated that Coleman’s corner was set by Horizons Survey and Ohlson 
pointed to the lot they surveyed which is in yellow/green on the maps/drawings and they would have 
the information.  Ohlson further stated they set a corner in one spot but not the other.  Ohlson further 
stated there are blazed trees so the line is quite clear.   

Hempel asked if Coleman is excavating too close to Ohlson’s property? Ohlson explained Coleman is 
excavating on the lot they bought from Russell Kennett and that this is in the Rural Residential District; 
with a recreation easement; a commercial activity and it is an expansion of a pit to a lot that they have 
not asked for a permit from the regulator, which is the Planning Board.  Ohlson stated the grandfathered 
lot is where the pit is now. Hempel stated that Briggs would not have to do the whole line and only do to 
that corner.  Marks, Acting Chairman stated correct, if that was previously done.  Hempel stated that 
Briggs was talking about going the whole line.  Marks, Acting Chairman stated that Briggs stated he 
would have to establish something to start a survey from a known point.  

Ohlson explained that the pit was grandfathered because the commercial zone only goes a couple 
hundred feet back and this is a grandfathered pit and that is not an issue within the bounds of the 
original lot.  Marks, Acting Chairman asked Ohlson if Coleman merged the lot in question with his other 
lot which Ohlson is saying is grandfathered?  Ohlson stated the grandfathered lot is where the pit is 
now.  Price asked if this is the pit just before the bridge on Route 113 just before you cross town line on 
the right heading north?  Ohlson agreed, yes just as you come into Madison.  Gagnon asked how long 
has it been a pit, if it is a grandfathered sand pit?  Ohlson stated it is the expansion of the pit that is the 
problem.  Price asked if Coleman has merged the lots?  Ohlson stated they have not.  Gagnon asked how 
old is the Coleman pit?  Ohlson stated around 1978.  Gagnon explained that if it was in the 70’s, it does 
not have to have a town permit.  Ohlson stated correct.  Gagnon stated so if it is an operating mill and if 
you have an abutting lot, doesn’t it read that you also don’t have to have a permit for that?  Ohlson 
stated no.  Price commented that especially considering that abutting lot is not in the commercial zone 
and it is a residential lot. 



Madison Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes 

 09/03/2025  
Page 6 of 7 

 
 

Price stated we have an estimate from Briggs and we know what we need to do but the question is, 
where do we get the money?  Marks, Acting Chairman stated that if there is a previous survey done, we 
can get that information to Briggs and he can research it and maybe only need to set one point.  Ohlson 
stated that the point Marks, Acting Chairman was referring to, was already set.  Price asked Ohlson if it 
is the inside corner that is not set?  Ohlson stated that point is set and that all four points are set.  
Hempel asked if all points are set, why would we have to have it surveyed?  Ohlson stated he is unsure if 
Horizon Survey has all the field work done and he is not sure if they would be less expensive.  Marks, 
Acting Chairman stated if it is set, there would be markings there to show the points.  Ohlson stated yes, 
there is a rebar on the ground.  Hempel asked if the board could do a site visit.  Price stated no, we are 
not allowed on Colemans property and he thinks that the board needs to go into non-public before we 
go any further because there are legal questions that need to be answered.  

Ohlson exited the building at 8:06 pm. 

The public portion of the meeting was adjourned, and the board entered a non-public session to discuss 
the Coleman Pit matter. 

8:06 pm - Motion by Price, seconded by Hempel to enter Non-Public Session per RSA 91-A:311(l) 
Consideration of legal advice provided by legal counsel, either in writing or orally, to one or more 
members of the public body, even where legal counsel is not present.  

Discussion:  The board did the roll call vote and Viana voted.  Young stated that Viana and Gagnon were 
not elevated tonight.  Price asked for clarification which one was an alternate and which one was a 
member.  Young stated Gagnon and Viana are both alternates but again, they were never elevated 
tonight.  Price stated that they do not need to be elevated as we still have three members.   

A roll call vote was done as follows on the above-noted motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Price - aye; Marks - aye; Hempel – aye. 

Discussion:  Price asked if we are still a quorum.  Young stated that you only have three members.  Price 
stated we need four members and we must elevate an alternate before we make that vote. 

Price then stated he would revise his motion and elevate Viana and Gagnon but realized that the board 
cannot do that because we do not have a quorum to elevate the alternates.  Price stated that we need 
Ohlson here to elevate the alternates and then make the motion and since he has already left, Price 
made the motion to adjourn. 

8:10 pm - Motion by Price, seconded by Hempel that no discussion or action for lack of a quorum and 
the meeting was adjourned.  The motion passed by roll call vote: Marks - aye; Littlefield - Aye; 
Nordlund - aye; Gagnon - aye; Hempel - aye; Viana - aye. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Katharine Young,                                                                                                                                                              
Land Use Boards Administrator 

 


	ELEVATION OF ALTERNATES:  Chairman Ohlson stated since there was a full board present, no alternates would be elevated.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Marks, seconded by Viana, to approve the agenda as presented. The motion was voted on and passed 4-0.
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES: August 6, 2025 minutes and August 6, 2025 Non-Public Minutes (made public):
	PUBLIC COMMENT/NEW BUSINESS: Chairman Ohlson asked if there was any public comment.  Susan Vatnick was on the agenda and asked to speak to the board.
	OLD BUSINESS:
	MASTER PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE:  Gagnon explained the committee went over the proposal from North Country Council (NCC) and she explained the committee is not ready to bring anything to the Planning Board and that the committee is trying to stay withi...
	Gagnon explained the committee is basically through the first phase of the planning and preparation of the Master Plan and cannot take off a line item at this point, or a full phase of the proposal. She further explained that the committee is half way...
	Gagnon explained that she had sent out the visioning prompts for our town leaders at the last meeting and was not sure if everyone was ready to go over it or have had time to fill it out.  She stated if it has been filled out, then we can workshop it ...
	Gagnon explained she is still waiting on visioning prompts to come back from all board members so they can workshop it either at the Planning Board meeting or a separate meeting.  Chairman Ohlson stated he would be out of town but that she could pick ...

	SELECTMAN’S REPORT – Adam Price:  Price stated that the Selectboard appointed Nicole Nordlund to fill Rick Judkins seat.  Gagnon questioned if Nordlund will take over Judkins duties?  Price believed Judkins did not have any.  Gagnon stated he had one ...
	Gagnon asked if there were any outside volunteers for the CIP Committee? Price stated he did not believe so but there is a running committee because there is a quorum based on reps from this board, the Board of Selectmen and the Budget Committee.
	PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC. – There was discussion about the Planning Board doing a site visit at Pike Industries on Rt. 113.  The Planning Board decided on October 9, 2025 at 4:00 pm.  It was further decided that members will park at the second driveway ar...
	Marks, Acting Chairman stated that last month, Ron Briggs, from Briggs Land Surveying came to a meeting and showed the board some drawings of the area in question.  Also, Briggs provided the cost for him to complete a survey and that cost was approxim...
	Marks, Acting Chairman stated that Ohlson had presented some pictures at a previous meeting and he asked Ohlson where the pictures were taken from?  Ohlson stated that they were mostly taken from the Bypass Corridor and Ohlson confirmed on the maps/dr...
	Hempel asked if Coleman is excavating too close to Ohlson’s property? Ohlson explained Coleman is excavating on the lot they bought from Russell Kennett and that this is in the Rural Residential District; with a recreation easement; a commercial activ...
	Ohlson explained that the pit was grandfathered because the commercial zone only goes a couple hundred feet back and this is a grandfathered pit and that is not an issue within the bounds of the original lot.  Marks, Acting Chairman asked Ohlson if Co...
	Price stated we have an estimate from Briggs and we know what we need to do but the question is, where do we get the money?  Marks, Acting Chairman stated that if there is a previous survey done, we can get that information to Briggs and he can resear...
	Ohlson exited the building at 8:06 pm.

